TITLE PAGE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH DOH 19-020



Respondent Mailing Address:	
City, State, Zip:	
	Fax Number:
E-Mail Address:	
Federal Employer Identification Number ((FEID):
READ THE ENTIRE ITB TERMS, CONDIT	BID TITLE PAGE, I HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE IONS, PROVISIONS, AND SPECIFICATIONS AND E REFERENCED PUR 1000 AND PUR 1001.
terms, conditions, provisions and specifica-	byees, and its principals agree to abide to all of the ations during the competitive solicitation and any in the Department's Order Terms and Conditions
Signature of Authorized Representative:	
Printed (Typed) Name and Title:	

*An authorized representative is an officer of the Respondent's organization who has legal authority to bind the organization to the provisions of this Bid. Documentation establishing delegated authority must be included with the Bid if signed by someone other than the authorized representative.

Respondent Name:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1.0: Introductory Materials
SECTION 2.0: Procurement Process, Schedule, & Constraints
SECTION 3.0: Instructions for Bid Submittal
SECTION 4.0: Special Conditions
ATTACHMENT A: Scope of Services
ATTACHMENT B: Price Page
ATTACHMENT C: Prior Experience and Contract Dispute Reporting Form
ATTACHMENT D: Statement of Non-Collusion Form
ATTACHMENT E: Respondent Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies List
ATTACHMENT F: Identical Tie Certification Form
ATTACHMENT G: Application, Data Security, and Confidentiality
ATTACHMENT H: Subcontractors List
ATTACHMENT I: HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
APPENDIX A: Regional breakdown

SECTION 1.0 INTRODUCTORY MATERIALS

1.1 Statement of Purpose

The purpose of this Invitation to Bid (ITB) is for the State of Florida, Department of Health (Department) to obtain competitive prices for the pickup, transport, imaging, indexing, uploading, storage, and destruction of the Florida Department of Health's (Department), AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP) client records.

1.2. Legal Authority

Chapter 287 and section 384.25 Florida Statutes.

1.3 Scope of Services

A detailed scope of services for this solicitation is provided as **Scope of Services** (Attachment A), in this ITB.

1.4 <u>Incorporation by Reference</u>

The PUR 1001, General Instructions to Respondents (PUR 1001), and PUR 1000, General Contract Requirements (PUR 1000), are hereby incorporated by reference to the terms of this solicitation. Refer to **Sections 3.1** and **4.1** of this ITB for further detail.

1.5 Definitions

In addition to the definitions in the PUR 1000 and PUR 1001, and the Scope of Services (Attachment A), the following definitions also apply to this ITB:

AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP): A statewide, federally funded prescription medication program for low income people living with Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV).

ADAP Central Office: The DOH State office that oversees each county health department's (CHD) ADAP.

ADAP County Health Department (CHD): The ADAP unit within a CHD.

Batch: A group of boxed ADAP client records.

Bid: The complete written response of Respondent to this ITB, including properly completed forms, supporting documents, and attachments.

Business Days: Monday through Friday, excluding state holidays.

Business Hours: 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time on all business days.

Calendar Days: All days, including weekends and holidays.

Certified Minority Business Enterprise: A business certified by any local governmental jurisdiction or organization accepted by the Department of Management Services, Office of Supplier Diversity (DMS), as a certified minority business enterprise for purposes of doing business with state government when DMS determines that the state's minority business enterprise certification criteria are applied in the local certification process in accordance with section 287.0943, Florida Statutes.

Contract: The formal agreement or Order that will be awarded to the successful Respondent under this ITB, unless indicated otherwise.

Department: The Department of Health; may be used interchangeably with DOH.

Finished Document: ADAP client records that Provider has scanned and are awaiting Department and ADAP CHD approval for destruction.

Live Scan Machine: Provider's scanning machine that scans ADAP client records and uploads them to the SFTP server.

Minor Irregularity: As used in the context of this solicitation, indicates a variation from the ITB terms and conditions which does not affect the price of the Bid, or give the Respondent an advantage or benefit not enjoyed by other Respondents, or does not adversely impact the interests of the Department.

Order: As used in the context of this solicitation, refers to a Purchase Order.

Project Manager: Provider's staff member tasked with overseeing the project and communicating with the ADAP Project Manager.

Protected Health Information (PHI): Any information in an ADAP client record that can be used to identify an individual and that was created, used, or disclosed in the course of providing a health care service, such as a diagnosis or treatment.

Provider: The successful Respondent awarded a contract by the Department in accordance with the terms of this ITB.

Respondent: The business entity that submits a Bid.

Restricted Area: The secure area at Provider's worksite that the ADAP client records are stored.

Secure File Transfer Protocol (SFTP) Server: DOH's server where scanned ADAP client records will be stored.

State: State of Florida.

Vendor Bid System (VBS): Refers to the State of Florida's internet-based vendor information system, which is available at: http://myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.main_menu. **Worksite**: Provider's secure area in Florida where Provider scans, uploads, and destroys the ADAP client records.

Where there is a conflict between a definition in this solicitation, **Section 1.5**, above, and the definition in **Scope of Services (Attachment A)**, the definition in this solicitation will prevail when the term is used in this solicitation. The definition in the **Scope of Services (Attachment A)**, will prevail when the term is used in the **Scope of Services (Attachment A)**.

SECTION 2.0 PROCUREMENT PROCESS, SCHEDULE, & CONSTRAINTS

2.1 Procurement Officer

The Procurement Officer assigned to this solicitation is:

Florida Department of Health Attention: <u>Brent Tambourine</u> 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin B07 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1749

Email: brent.tambourine@flhealth.gov

2.2 Restrictions on Communications

Pursuant to section 287.057(23), Florida Statutes, Respondents to this solicitation or persons acting on their behalf may not contact, between the release of the solicitation and the end of the 72-hour period following the agency posting the notice of intended award, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays, any employee or officer of the executive or legislative branch concerning any aspect of this solicitation, except in writing to the Procurement Officer listed in **Section 2.1**, above. Violation of this provision may be grounds for rejecting a Bid.

2.3 <u>Term</u>

It is anticipated that the Order resulting from this ITB will be for a two-year period beginning March 2, 2020 or the Purchase Order issuance date, whichever is later. The Order resulting from this ITB is contingent upon availability of funds.

2.4 <u>Timeline</u>

EVENT	DUE DATE	LOCATION
ITB Advertised / Released	2/19/2020	Posted to the Vendor Bid System at: http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu
Questions Submitted in Writing	Must be received PRIOR TO: 2/24/2020 3:00 PM	Submit to: Florida Department of Health Central Purchasing Office Attention: Brent Tambourine Suite 310 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin B07 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1749 E-mail: brent.tambourine@flhealth.gov

Answers to Questions (Anticipated Date)	2/28/2020	Posted to Vendor Bid System at: http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main-menu
Sealed Bids Due	Must be received PRIOR to: 3/10/2020 3:00 PM	Submit to: Florida Department of Health Central Purchasing Office Attention: Brent Tambourine Suite 310 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin B07 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1749
Sealed Bids Opened	3/11/2020 2:00 PM	PUBLIC OPENING Submit to: Florida Department of Health Central Purchasing Office Attention: Brent Tambourine Suite 310 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin B07 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1749
Anticipated Posting of Intent to Award	3/17/2020	Posted to the Vendor Bid System at: http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu

2.5 Addenda

If the Department finds it necessary to supplement, modify, or interpret any portion of the solicitation during the procurement process, a written addendum will be posted on the VBS. If the addendum alters the scope or specifications of the solicitation, the Respondent will be required to sign the addendum acknowledging the changes and return it with the Bid submittal. It is the responsibility of the Respondent to be aware of any addenda that might affect this ITB or their Bid.

2.6 Questions

This provision takes precedence over General Instruction #5 in PUR1001.

Questions related to this solicitation must be received in writing (either via United States Postal Service, courier, e-mail, or hand-delivery) by the Procurement Officer identified in **Section 2.1**, within the time indicated in **Section 2.4**. Verbal questions or those submitted after the period specified in **Section 2.4** will not be addressed.

Answers to questions submitted in accordance with **Section 2.4** will be posted on the VBS.

2.7 Basis of Award

A single award will be made to the responsive, responsible Respondent offering the lowest grand total for the services requested in this ITB. The Department reserves the right to not make an award under this ITB, as determined to be in the best interest of the State.

2.8 <u>Identical Scoring Outcomes</u>

In the event the Department's evaluation results in identical scoring outcomes between two or more Respondents, the Department will provide the **Identical Tie Certification**, **Attachment F**, form for the affected Respondents to complete. If one or more Respondents are entitled to the certified veteran business enterprise preference specified in section 295.187, Florida Statutes, and one or more business entitled to this preference or another preference provided by law submit bids, proposals, or replies for procurement of commodities or contractual services which are equal with respect to all relevant considerations, including price, quality, and service, the Department will award the procurement or contract to the business having the smallest net worth. If one or more Respondents has the certified veteran preference, it and any other vendor entitled to another preference provided by law will be requested by the Department to submit Respondents net worth.

In the event the Department is unable to select a Respondent using the Tie Breaker Criteria specified in Attachment F, and the net worth criteria above, or if the net worth criteria above does not apply, then, the affected Respondent(s) name will be placed in a container for the Department's Procurement Officer to randomly select the awardee of this solicitation. The date, time, and location will be posted on VBS.

2.9 Modifications and Withdrawal

A Respondent may modify or withdraw its Bid at any time prior to the submittal deadline, as specified in **Section 2.4**, by submitting a request to the Procurement Officer. Requests for modification or withdrawal of a submitted Bid must be in writing and signed by an authorized signatory of the Respondent. Upon receipt and acceptance of such a request, the entire Bid will be returned to the Respondent and will not be considered unless resubmitted by the Bid due date and time.

2.10 Clarification Process

The Department may request clarification from the Respondent to resolve ambiguities or to question minor irregularities presented in its Bid. Clarifications may be requested throughout this procurement process. The Respondent's answers to requested clarifications must be in writing and address only the information requested. The Respondent's answers to requested clarifications must be submitted to the Department within the time specified by the Department.

2.11 Contract Formation

The Department will enter into a Contract with the awarded Respondent pursuant to Section 2.7, Basis of Award. The Contract will incorporate the terms of the Scope of Services (Attachment A), the Department's Order Terms and Conditions, and the awarded Respondent's Price Page (Attachment B).

SECTION 3.0 INSTRUCTIONS FOR BID SUBMITTAL

3.1 General Instructions to Respondents (PUR 1001)

The General Instructions to Respondents (PUR 1001) is incorporated by reference in this solicitation. This document should not be returned with the Bid. The PUR 1001 is located at http://dms.myflorida.com/content/download/2934/11780.

The terms of this solicitation control over any conflicting terms of the PUR1001.

3.2 Instructions for Submittal

- 3.2.1. Respondents must complete, sign, and return the "Title Page" with their Bid submittal.
- 3.2.2 Respondents must complete and return the **Price Page (Attachment B)** with their Bid submittal.
- 3.2.3 Respondents must submit all technical and pricing data in the formats specified in the ITB.
- 3.2.4 Respondents must submit one original paper copy of their Bid and one original copy on a single USB storage device, or CD viewable in Adobe Acrobat Reader (PDF). The electronic copy submitted must contain the entire Bid as the submitted original copy, including all supporting and signed documents. Refer to **Section 3.4** for information on redacting confidential information, if applicable.
- 3.2.5 Bids must be sent by United States Postal Service, courier, or hand delivered to the location indicated in **Section 2.4**, **Timeline**.
- 3.2.6 Bids submitted via electronic mail (email) or facsimile will **not** be considered.
- 3.2.7 Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope or sealed package with the solicitation number, date, and time of the Bid opening clearly marked on the outside.
- 3.2.8. The Department is not responsible for improperly marked Bids.
- 3.2.9 It is the Respondent's responsibility to ensure its Bid is submitted at the proper place and time indicated in **Section 2.4, Timeline.**
- 3.2.10 Bids must be received by the date and time specified in **Section 2.4**, **Timeline**.
- 3.2.11 The Department's clocks will provide the official time for Bid receipt.
- 3.2.12 Materials submitted will become the property of the State and accordingly, the State reserves the right to use any concepts or ideas contained in the Bid.

3.3 Cost of Preparation

Neither the Department nor the State is liable for any costs incurred by a Respondent in responding to this solicitation.

3.4 Public Records and Trade Secrets

Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary, public records must be made available pursuant to the provisions of the Public Records Act. If Respondent considers any portion of their Bid to this solicitation to be confidential, exempt, trade secret, or otherwise not subject to disclosure pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the Florida Constitution, or any other authority, Respondent must segregate and clearly mark the document(s) as "CONFIDENTIAL".

Simultaneously, Respondent will provide the Department with a separate redacted paper and electronic copy of their Bid and briefly describe in writing the grounds for claiming exemption from the public records law, including the specific statutory citation for such exemption. This redacted copy must contain the solicitation name, number, and the name of Respondent on the cover, and must be clearly titled "**REDACTED COPY**".

The redacted copy must be provided to the Department at the same time Respondent submits its Bid and must only exclude or obliterate those exact portions which are claimed confidential, proprietary, or trade secret. Respondent will be responsible for defending its determination that the redacted portions of their Bid are confidential, trade secret, or otherwise not subject to disclosure. Further, Respondent must protect, defend, and indemnify the Department for all claims arising from or relating to the determination that the redacted portions of their Bid are confidential, proprietary, trade secret, or otherwise not subject to disclosure. If Respondent fails to submit a redacted copy with their Bid, the Department is authorized to produce the entire documents, data, or records submitted by Respondent in answer to a public records request for these records.

3.5 Price Page (Attachment B)

Respondent must fill out the **Price Page (Attachment B)**, as indicated, and return it with their Bid.

3.6 Prior Experience and Contract Dispute Reporting Form

Respondent must provide documentation of prior experience related to the scope of this Bid and identify all contract disputes the Respondent (including its affiliates, subcontractors, agents, etc.) has had with such customer(s) within the last five years related to contracts under which the Respondent provided(s) commodities or services in the United States on an organizational or enterprise level that may impact or has impacted the Respondent's ability to provide the services described in this solicitation. See the **Prior Experience and Contract Dispute Reporting Form (Attachment C)** for further details and complete the form in its entirety and submit it with the Bid. The term "contract disputes" means any circumstances involving the performance or non-performance of a contractual obligation that resulted in any of the following actions:

- 3.6.1 Identification by the contract customer that the Respondent was in default or breach of a duty or performance under the contract.
- 3.6.2 An issuance of a notice of default or breach.
- 3.6.3 The assessment of any fines or direct, consequential, or liquidated damages under such contracts.

3.6.4 If there are no such contract disputes, the Respondent must submit a statement confirming this fact using the title in its Bid.

3.7 <u>Subcontractor List</u>

Respondent may enter into written subcontracts for performance of services under the Contract resulting from this solicitation. Any anticipated subcontract agreements known at the time of Bid submission and the amount of the subcontract must be identified in the Bid. If a subcontract has been identified at the time of Bid submission, a copy of the proposed subcontract must be submitted to the Department. No subcontract that Respondent enters into with respect to performance under the Contract will in any way relieve Respondent of any responsibility for performance of its Contract responsibilities with the Department. The Department reserves the right to request and review information in conjunction with its determination regarding a subcontract request and reject any subcontractor proposed by the Respondent in its Bid.

The Respondent must complete **Subcontractors List (Attachment H)**, in its entirety and submit it with the Bid.

3.8 **Special Accommodations**

Persons with disability requiring special accommodations should call the Department's Purchasing office at least five business days, prior to any pre-Bid conference, Bid opening, or meeting at (850) 245-4199. If hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department's Purchasing office through the Florida Relay Service, at 1-800-955-8771 (TTY).

3.9 <u>Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) Business</u> <u>Associate Agreement</u>

Upon Contract award, the Respondent must execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement and comply with all provisions of state and federal law regarding confidentiality of patient information. See **the Business Associate Agreement (Attachment I)**, for further details.

3.10 Responsive and Responsible (Mandatory Requirements)

Respondents must complete and submit the following mandatory information or documentation as part of their Bid by the time specified in **Section 2.4**. Any Bid which does not contain the information below will be deemed non-responsive to this ITB:

- 3.10.1 **Title Page** must be completed, signed, and submitted with the Bid.
- 3.10.2 Price Page (Attachment B), as specified in Section 3.5.
- 3.10.3 Prior Experience and Contract Disputes Reporting Form (Attachment C), as specified in Section 3.6.
- 3.10.4 Statement of Non-Collusion Form (Attachment D), as specified in Section 4.3.
- 3.10.5 Respondent Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists (Attachment E) as specified in Section 4.2.

3.10.6 HIPAA Business Associate Agreement, as specified in Section 3.12.

3.10.7 Bids must document the Respondent's ability to meet the following minimum requirements:

- 3.10.7.1 Three years of experience with scanning, indexing, and formatting paper files into PDF files and zipped files and transferring them to a server designated for PHI documents;
- 3.10.7.2 Three years of experience in transporting shipments of palletized boxes or subcontracting with a secure transport company to transport shipment of palletized boxes;
- 3.10.7.3 Three years of experience in storing original paper documents for a 60-day period; and
- 3.10.7.4 Three years of experience in the destruction of paper documents.

3.11 Late Bids

The Procurement Officer must receive Bids pursuant to this ITB no later than the date and time specified in **Section 2.4**. Bids that are not received by the date and time specified will not be considered.

SECTION 4.0 SPECIAL CONDITIONS

4.1 PUR 1000, General Contract Conditions

The PUR 1000 is incorporated by reference in this ITB and contains general Contract terms and conditions that will apply to any Contract resulting from this ITB, to the extent they are not otherwise modified. This document should not be returned with the Bid. The PUR 1000 is located at http://dms.myflorida.com/content/download/2933/11777.

The terms of this solicitation control over any conflicting terms of the PUR 1000. Paragraph 31 of PUR 1000 does NOT apply to this ITB or any resulting contract.

4.2 Scrutinized Companies

All Respondents seeking to do business with the Department must be in compliance with section 287.135, Florida Statutes. The Department may, at its option, terminate a Contract if Respondent is found to have submitted a false certification as provided under section 287.135(5), Florida Statutes, been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel, or have been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

Refer to Respondent Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists Form, Attachment E.

4.3 Conflict of Interest and Statement of Non-Collusion

Section 287.057(17)(c), Florida Statutes, provides "A person who receives a contract that has not been procured pursuant to subsections (1)-(3) to perform a feasibility study of the potential implementation of a subsequent contract, who participates in the drafting of a solicitation or who develops a program for future implementation, is not eligible to contract with the agency for any other contracts dealing with that specific subject matter, and any firm in which such person has any interest is not eligible to receive such contract. However, this prohibition does not prevent a vendor who responds to a request for information from being eligible to contract with an agency."

The Department considers participation through decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation, preparation of any part of a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, or auditing or any other advisory capacity to constitute participation in drafting of the solicitation.

Refer to Statement of Non-Collusion Form, (Attachment D).

4.4 Certificate of Authority

All limited liability companies, corporations, corporations not for profit, and partnerships seeking to do business with the State must be registered with the Florida Department of State in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 605, 607, 617, and 620, Florida Statutes, respectively, prior to Contract execution. The Department retains the right to ask for verification of compliance before Contract execution. Failure of the Respondent

to have appropriate registration may result in withdrawal of the Contract award and forfeiture of its Bid Bond, if applicable.

4.5 Respondent Registration

Each Respondent doing business with the State for the sale of commodities or contractual services as defined in section 287.012, Florida Statutes, must register in the MyFloridaMarketPlace system, unless exempted under Rule 60A-1.033, Florida Administrative Code. State agencies must not enter into an agreement for the sale of commodities or contractual services as defined in section 287.012, Florida Statutes, with any Respondent not registered in the MyFloridaMarketPlace system, unless exempted by rule. The Respondent must be registered in the MyFloridaMarketPlace system within five days after posting of the Intent to Award.

Registration may be completed at:

https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/vms-web/spring/login?execution=e2s1

A Respondent lacking internet access may request assistance from MyFloridaMarketPlace Customer Service at 866-352-3776 or from State Purchasing, 4050 Esplanade Drive, Suite 300, Tallahassee, FL 32399.

4.6 Minority, Women, and Florida Veteran Business Participation

The Department encourages certified minority, women, and Florida veteran business participation in all its solicitations.

4.7 <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>

- 4.7.1 Provider must secure and maintain, at its sole expense and for the duration of the Contract, term insurance policies to protect any subcontractor(s) and the State for the services rendered under the Contract as follows:
 - 4.7.1.1 Workers' Compensation in accordance with applicable state laws and regulations.
 - 4.7.1.2 General Liability Insurance covering all operations and services under the Contract in amounts sufficient to protect the Department.
 - 4.7.1.3 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance in amounts sufficient to protect the Department.
- 4.7.2 Certificates of insurance coverage described above must be furnished by the Provider upon the Department's request.
- 4.7.3 Provider's insurance policy must be written by a company licensed by the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services, Division of Insurance Agent and Agency Services.

4.8 <u>Indemnification</u>

Respondent must save and hold harmless and indemnify the Department against any and all liability, claims, judgments, or costs of whatsoever kind or nature for injury to, or death of any person or persons and for loss or damage to any property resulting from the use, service operation, or performance of work under the terms of the Contract, resulting in whole or in part from the negligent acts or omissions by Respondent, their subcontractor, or any of the employees, agents, or representatives of Respondent or subcontractor.

4.9 Performance Measures

Pursuant to section 287.058, Florida Statutes, the resulting Contract must contain performance measures which specify the required minimum level of acceptable service to be performed. The performance measures are detailed in the **Scope of Services**, (Attachment A).

4.10 <u>Financial Consequences</u>

Pursuant to section 287.058, Florida Statutes, the resulting Contract must contain financial consequences that will apply if successful Respondent fails to perform in accordance with the Contract terms. The financial consequences are detailed in the **Scope of Services**, (Attachment A).

4.11 Order

Respondent must become familiar with the Department's Terms and Conditions which contains administrative, financial, and non-programmatic terms and conditions mandated by federal laws, state statutes, administrative code rules, and directive of the Department of Financial Service's Chief Financial Officer.

Use of the Department's Terms and Conditions are mandatory for Department Orders issued in MyFloridaMarketplace as they contain the basic clauses required by law. The terms and conditions contained in the Department's Terms and Conditions are non-negotiable. The Department's Terms and Conditions are located at:

http://www.floridahealth.gov/_media/procurements/_documents/doh-terms-and-conditions.pdf

4.12 Conflict of Law and Controlling Provisions

Any Contract resulting from this ITB, and any conflict of law issue, will be governed by the laws of Florida. Venue must be in Leon County, Florida, to the exclusion of all other jurisdictions.

Respondents acknowledge that this solicitation (including but not limited to the resulting Contract, exhibits, attachments, or amendments) is not a rule nor subject to rulemaking under Chapter 120 (or its successor) of the Florida Statutes and is not subject to challenge as a rule or non-rule policy under any provision of Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

4.13 Agency Inspectors General

It is the duty of every state officer, employee, agency, special district, board, commission, contractor, and subcontractor to cooperate with the inspector general in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant to section 20.055, Florida Statutes.

4.14 Records and Documentation

To the extent that information is used in the performance of the resulting Contract or generated as a result of it, and to the extent that information meets the definition of "public record" as defined in section 119.011(12), Florida Statutes, said information is hereby declared to be and is hereby recognized by the parties to be a public record and absent a provision of law or administrative rule or regulation requiring otherwise, Respondent must make the public records available for inspection or copying upon request of the Department's custodian of public records in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Respondent's refusal to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, will constitute an immediate breach of the Contract resulting from this ITB and entitles the Department to unilaterally terminate the Contract.

Unless a greater retention period is required by state or federal law, all documents pertaining to the program contemplated by this ITB must be retained by Respondent for a period of six years after the termination of the resulting Contract or longer as may be required by any renewal or extension of the Contract. During the records retention period, Respondent agrees to furnish, when requested to do so, all documents required to be retained. Submission of such documents must be in the Department's standard word processing format. If this standard should change, it will be at no cost incurred to the Department. Data files will be provided in a format readable by the Department.

Respondent must maintain all records required to be maintained pursuant to the resulting Contract in such manner as to be accessible by the Department upon demand. Where permitted under applicable law, access by the public must be permitted without delay.

4.15 Attorney's Fees

In the event of a dispute prior to or post award, each party responding to this solicitation is responsible for its own attorneys' fees, except as otherwise provided by law.

4.16 Protests

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, or failure to post a bond or other security required by law within the time allowed for filing a bond will constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

Only documents delivered by the United States Postal Service, a private delivery service, in person, or by facsimile during business hours will be accepted. Documents received after business hours will be filed the following business day.

No filings may be made by email or any other electronic means. All filings must be made with the Agency Clerk ONLY and are only considered "filed" when stamped by the official stamp of the Agency Clerk. It is the responsibility of the filing party to meet all filing deadlines.

Do not send Bids to the Agency Clerk's Office. Send all Bids to the Procurement Officer and address listed in Section 2.4, Timeline.

The Agency Clerk's mailing address:

Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Health 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN A-02 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1703 Telephone No. (850) 245-4005

The Agency Clerk's physical address for hand deliveries:

Agency Clerk, Florida Department of Health 2585 Merchants Row Blvd. Tallahassee, Florida 32399 Fax No. (850) 413-8743

1. PURPOSE:

This scope of services is for the pickup, transport, imaging, indexing, uploading into the SFTP server, storage, and destruction of the Department's ADAP client records.

2. TERM:

The term of this scope of work will begin on March 2, 2020 or on the date which the purchase order is issued, whichever is later. It will end at midnight, Eastern Time, two years from issuance of the purchase order or at completion of project tasks, whichever occurs first. The state of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this purchase order and any subsequent renewal is contingent upon annual appropriation by the Legislature and satisfactory performance of the Contractor.

3. LOCATION OF WORK:

The worksite for this scope of work is the following location(s):

Services will be provided at Provider's worksite in Florida.

4. CRIMINAL BACKGROUND SCREENING:

The Department will conduct a criminal history record check, including fingerprinting, on the Provider's assigned Project Manager prior to the Project Manager commencing work for the Department. The Department retains sole discretion as to whether the results of the criminal history record check will result in Provider's Project Manager being disgualified from performing services pursuant to this agreement.

5. RESPONDENT QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE:

- 5.1. Respondent must possess, at minimum, the following qualifications:
 - 5.1.1. Three years of experience with scanning, indexing, and formatting paper files into PDF files and zipped files and transferring them to a SFTP server for PHI documents:
 - 5.1.2. Three years of experience in transporting shipments of palletized boxes or subcontracting with a secure transport company to transport shipment of palletized boxes;
 - 5.1.3. Three years of experience in storing original paper documents for a 60-day period; and
 - 5.1.4. Three years of experience in the destruction of paper documents.

6. RESPONDENT RESPONSIBILITIES:

6.1. **SERVICE TASKS**: Respondent will perform the following tasks in the time and manner specified:

- 6.1.1. Assign a Project Manager at the time of contract execution to direct the conversion of ADAP client records into PDFs, provide weekly status updates to the Department as specified in Service Task 6.1.2, and maintain all ADAP client records and all project documentation. Maintain the Project Manager throughout the contract term. If there is a vacancy, assign a new Project Manager within 30 days from the date of vacancy. If the Project Manager does not pass the background screening or is disqualified, assign a new Program Manager within 30 days from the date of the background screening.
- 6.1.2. Ensure the Project Manager provides the Department with status updates on the number of ADAP client records documents received from each ADAP CHD and from which ADAP CHD the documents were received from and the number of batches scanned, uploaded, and destroyed via email each week by Friday at 12:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.
- 6.1.3. Ensure the Project Manager creates project documentation each month that includes the date(s) the batches were picked up from the ADAP CHDs and the number of batches that were scanned and destroyed. Submit the project documentation with the monthly invoice.
- 6.1.4. Provide support via email and telephone during business hours to the ADAP Central Office or ADAP CHDs as requested by the Department. Respond to all email and telephone communication within three business days from the date of receipt.
- 6.1.5. Create a pick-up schedule with the ADAP CHDs listed on Appendix A for the pick-up of batches from the ADAP CHDs and transfer of the batches to Respondent's worksite as requested by the Department. Pick-up and transfer the batches in accordance with the schedule. Confirm the number of batches in each shipment with the Department immediately after receiving a batch. Notify the ADAP Project Manager of pick-up schedule prior to the pick-up of each batch.
- 6.1.6. Securely scan, index, format, upload, and transfer approximately 3,652,996 images from the ADAP client records within two years from purchase order execution or at completion of project tasks, whichever occurs first. All scanning, indexing, formatting, uploading, storage, destruction, and handling of ADAP client records must be done in Florida and in compliance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and sections 381.004 and 384.29, Florida Statutes. Securely scan, index, format, upload, and transfer ADAP client records as follows:
 - 6.1.6.1. Prior to scanning ADAP client record documents, prepare the documents by removing staples, paper clips, binder clips, sticky notes, and carbon paper as necessary.

- 6.1.6.2. After preparing the documents, scan documents at 300 dots per inch, black and white within two years from issuance of the purchase order or at completion of project tasks, whichever occurs first.
- 6.1.6.3. After scanning each batch, upload each PDF file into the applicable file on the SFTP server, labeled by county and date of the scan. There must be a different PDF file for each ADAP client record.
- 6.1.6.4. Provide images to the Department in a multi-page PDF format for each ADAP client, saved as a Windows network folder as specified by the Department.
- 6.1.6.4. Zip and transfer PDF files to the SFTP server after scanning the ADAP client record documents.
- 6.1.6.5. Re-scan documents at the Department's request. All re-scanning must be completed within two years from issuance of the purchase order or at completion of project tasks, whichever occurs first. In the event that the quality of the scan falls below 98 percent, or the image quality falls below 98 percent for any one batch, the entire batch must be re-scanned and indexed.
- 6.1.7. Provide access to ADAP client records for individual counties during the imaging and uploading process as requested by an ADAP CHD. Ship the ADAP client records as specified by ADAP Central Office or ADAP CHD. The ADAP Central Office or ADAP CHD will bear the cost of shipping for the return of any requested ADAP client records.
- 6.1.8. Store finished documents at Provider's worksite until the Department and the ADAP CHD that the ADAP client records are from review and determine the finished documents can be destroyed.
- 6.1.9. Complete a destruction order as specified by the Contract Manager prior to the destruction of the finished documents. Submit the completed destruction order to the Contract Manager within 15 business days of approval for destruction of the documents.
- 6.1.10. Destroy ADAP client records and issue a certificate of destruction to the Department within 15 business days of the Department and ADAP CHD's review and determination that the finished documents can be destroyed.
- 6.1.11. Perform the following security measures:
 - 6.1.11.1. Obtain a Level 2 Background screening via a Live Scan Machine and fingerprints for all employees with access to ADAP client records.
 - 6.1.11.2. Monitor access to ADAP client records and scanned documents 24 hours a day, seven days a week.
 - 6.1.11.3. Provide a restricted area for finished documents that have uniform locking devices and alarms on all the doors.
 - 6.1.11.4. Ensure all employees wear identification badges at all times.
 - 6.1.11.5. Ensure uniform locking devices on all outside doors and inside doors where ADAP client record documents are being processed

- is active. (Example: Burglary alarm systems and managed access controls).
- 6.1.11.6. Ensure all visitors, which include individuals that are not Provider's employees, sign and date a visitation log upon entry to and exit from the restricted area. Maintain the visitation log throughout the contract term. Ensure all visitors are restricted to authorized areas unless appropriate clearances are obtained for entering a restricted area.
- 6.1.11.7. Monitor inside and outside of the restricted area using twenty-four hour security camera and a supervisor during business hours.
- 6.1.12. Submit an executed HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (Attachment I) to the Department upon contract execution.

6.1.13. DATA SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY TASK:

Respondent, its employees, subcontractors, and agents must comply at all times with all Department data security procedures and policies in the performance of this scope of work as specified **Attachment G, Application**, **Data Security, and Confidentiality** form.

6.2. **DELIVERABLES**:

Respondent will complete and submit the following deliverables to the Department in the time and manner specified:

6.2.1. Monthly: Provision of pickup, transport, imaging, indexing, uploading into the SFTP server, storage, and destruction of ADAP client records with submission of supporting documentation as specified in Tasks 6.1.1 through 6.1.13.

7. METHOD OF PAYMENT:

- 7.1. A purchase order will be issued to the Provider.
- 7.2. The method of payment for this purchase order is unit rate, as specified on the Price Page (Attachment B).
- 7.3. Provider must submit an invoice monthly that provides a detailed accounting of the deliverables performed during the invoice period for which payment is being requested.

8. PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES:

All deliverables and related tasks must be completed 100 percent as specified. Failure to satisfactorily complete or submit a deliverable in the time and manner specified will result in a financial consequence as indicated below:

- 8.1. Failure to perform Deliverable 6.2.1 as specified will result in a 35 percent reduction in the monthly invoice amount for each task not met.
- 8.2. Failure of Provider, its employees, subcontractors, and agents to comply at all times with all Department data security procedures and policies in the

performance of this scope of work as specified **Attachment G**, **Application**, **Data Security**, **and Confidentiality** form as specified in Task 6.1.13. will result in a 50 percent reduction in the monthly invoice.

9. PROVIDER TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT:

Provider will not be reimbursed for any travel expenses under this agreement.

10. DEPARTMENT CONTRACT MANAGER:

The Department Contract Manager for this scope of work is:

Peter Lewis
Human Services Program
Coordinator
peter.lewis@flhealth.gov
850-901-6687

Florida Department of Health 4025 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL 32399 850-901-6687

Contract Manager Training Database

11. CONTROLLING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

- 11.1. Data Security and Confidentiality Document;
- 11.2. Agency Invitation to Bid (DOH19-020);
- 11.3. Department Purchase Order Terms and Conditions;
- 11.4. Provider's Response to the Department's Invitation to Bid; and
- 11.5. Department Scope of Work SOW19-020.

ATTACHMENT B PRICE PAGE

A single award solicitation will be made to the responsive, responsible Respondent offering lowest grand total for the services requested in this ITB including: document pick up and transport, storage, imaging, indexing, uploading to ADAP, and document destruction.

Unit price will control in the case of mathematical error(s).

Respondent must not change the format of this price page.

Physical pickup locations may be subject to change. See Appendix A for locations listed for each region.

*** The approximated number of boxes in this ITB are only to be used to assist the Respondent in determining bid prices and are not to be considered as definite quantities to be needed by the Department. The number of boxes may be less than or greater than those stated in this solicitation. ***

Region (As specified on Appendix A)	Unit price per box	*Approximate number of boxes	Total Region Price
Northwest Region	\$	*32 boxes	\$
North Central Region	\$	*63 boxes	\$
Northeast Region	\$	*8 boxes	\$
East Central Region	\$	*116 boxes	\$
West Central Region	\$	*26 boxes	\$
Southeast Region	\$	*92 boxes	\$
Southwest Region	\$	*78 boxes	\$
South Region	\$	*128 boxes	\$

ATTACHMENT C PRIOR EXPERIENCE AND CONTRACT DISPUTE REPORTING FORM

The document is to be used by the Respondent to certify information related to **three** years of prior performance related to the scope of this Bid and contract disputes the Respondent (including its affiliates, subcontractors, agents, etc.) has had with any such customer(s) within the last five years.

Customer	
Commodity/Service Provided	
Contract/Agreement #	
Term of Contract/Agreement	
Contact Person Name	
Contact Person E-mail	
address	
Contact Person Phone	
number	
Customer	
Commodity/Service Provide	
,	
Contract/Agreement #	
Term of Contract/Agreement	
Contact Person Name	
Contact Person e-mail	
address	
Contact Person Phone	
number	
Customer	
Commodity/Service Provide	
Contract/Agreement #	
Contract/Agreement #	
Term of Contract/Agreement	
Contact Person Name	

ATTACHMENT C PRIOR EXPERIENCE AND CONTRACT DISPUTE REPORTING FORM

_		
Contact Person e-mail		
address		
Contact Person Phone number		
HUHINGI		
Within the last five years, did Re	espondent have any contract disputes?	
Yes □ No □		
If yes, complete the following	information:	
Customer Name:		
Contract Number(s):		
Date of Contract		
Date of Contract Dispute:		
Explanation of Dispute:		
Resolution of Dispute:		
Amount of Fine (if any):		

ATTACHMENT C PRIOR EXPERIENCE AND CONTRACT DISPUTE REPORTING FORM

By signing this document, I certify to the best of my knowledge that the information presented herein is true, accurate, and complete for contract disputes experienced during the last five years from the date of signature.

	Authorized Representative Signature	Date
Additional contract disput subsequent copies of pag	te information can be documented on page tw ge two as needed.	vo of this form and
Customer Name:		
Contract Number(s):		
Date of Contract Dispute:		
Explanation of Dispute:		
Resolution of Dispute:		
Amount of Fine (if any):		

ATTACHMENT D STATEMENT OF NON-COLLUSION

I hereby certify that my company, its employees, and its principals, had no involvement in performing a feasibility study of the implementation of the subject Contract, in the drafting of this solicitation document, or in developing the subject program. Further, my company, its employees, and principals, engaged in no collusion in the development of the instant Bid, proposal or reply. This Bid, proposal or reply is made in good faith and there has been no violation of the provisions of Chapter 287, Florida Statutes, the Florida Administrative Code Rules promulgated pursuant thereto, or any procurement policy of the Department. I certify I have full authority to legally bind Respondent to the provisions of this Bid, proposal or reply.

Signature of Authorized Representative*	-	Date

*An authorized representative is an officer of the Respondent's organization who has legal authority to bind the organization to the provisions of the Bids. This usually is the President, Chairman of the Board, or owner of the entity. A document establishing delegated authority must be included with the Bid if signed by someone other than the President, Chairman or owner.

ATTACHMENT E RESPONDENT CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LIST

Respondent Name:	
Respondent Mailing Address:	
City-State-Zip:	
Telephone Number:	
Email Address:	
Federal Employer Identification Number (FEID):	
Section 287.135, Florida Statutes prohibits a company from bidding on, submitting a proposal for, into or renewing a contract for goods or services of any amount if, at the time of contracting or recompany is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to section 215.47 Statutes, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, also prohibits a corbidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract for goods or services of or more, that are on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector Lists which were created pursuant to section 215.4 Statutes.	enewal, the 725, Florida mpany from \$1,000,000 Companies
As the person authorized to sign on behalf of the Respondent, I hereby certify that the company ident in the section entitled "Respondent Name" is not listed on either the Scrutinized Companies with Sudan List, the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or the Companies that Boycott Israel List. I further certify that the company is not engaged in a boycott understand that pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of a false certification in company to civil penalties, attorney's fees, and/or costs.	Activities in Scrutinized of Israel. I
Signature of Authorized Representative*:	
Printed (Typed) Name and Title:	

*An authorized representative is an officer of the Respondent's organization who has legal authority to bind the organization to the provisions of the Bids. This usually is the President, Chairman of the Board, or owner of the entity. A document establishing delegated authority must be included with the Bid if signed by someone other than the President, Chairman or owner.

ATTACHMENT F IDENTICAL TIE CERTIFICATION FORM

Responde	ent Name:	
Responde	ent Mailing	Address:
City-State	e-Zip:	
Telephon	e Number:	
Email Ad	dress:	
Federal E	mployer lo	lentification Number (FEID):
proposal, to take ad provisions If the Departhe Depar	or replies re vantage of and certify artment disa tment rese	Statutes, provide Respondents the advantage of "tie breakers" whenever two or more bids, aceived by an agency are equal with respect to price, quality, and service. For a Respondent the below "tie breakers," it must meet the statutory qualifications for one or more of these that it qualifies for the cited preference. Covers that any information on this form is false after the award to the Respondent is made, rives the right to terminate the Contract and hold the awarded Respondent liable for costs occuring the services. The Respondent certifies that below preferences apply:
Yes	No	Applicable Certification
		Certified Minority Business Enterprise: This Bid is from a certified minority-owned firm or company in accordance with sections 287.057(11) and 287.0943, Florida Statutes.
		<u>Certified Veteran Business Enterprise</u> : This Bid is from a certified veteran business enterprise in accordance with section 295.187, Florida Statutes.
		<u>Drug Free Workplace</u> : This Bid is from a Respondent that currently maintains a drug-free workplace environment in accordance with section 287.087, Florida Statutes.
		Foreign Manufacturer (This preference only applies to State procurements of commodities): This Bid is from a foreign manufacturer with a factory in Florida employing over 200 employees in the State in accordance with section 287.092, Florida Statutes.
		Preference to Florida Business (This preference only applies to State procurements of personal property:
		This Bid is from a vendor who meets the requirements of section 287.084, Florida Statutes.
		This Proposal is from a Respondent that is not eligible for any of the above preferences.
•	rson author bove requir	l ized to sign this statement on behalf of the Respondent, I certify that this Bid complies fully ements.
Signature	of Author	ized Representative*:
Printed (1	Гуреd) Nan	ne and Title:

*An authorized representative is an officer of the Respondent's organization who has legal authority to bind the organization to the provisions of the Proposal, Reply or Bids. This usually is the President, Chairman of the Board, or

ATTACHMENT F IDENTICAL TIE CERTIFICATION FORM

owner of the entity. A document establishing delegated authority must be included with the Proposal, Reply or Bid, if signed by someone other than the President, Chairman or owner.	

This attachment is for the purpose of ensuring adequate information security protection is in place in at all times during this contract between the Department of Health hereinafter referred to as "the (Department") and service providers, vendors, and information trading partners, all referenced hereinafter together referred to as "Providers" in this attachment.

In this document, the term State Data means any electronic information including, but not limited to, records, files, computer programs, and databases, that are owned by the state of Florida.

- 1. **Hosting Data or Applications** This section applies to all contracts whereby a Provider is hosting data, or hosting an application that processes data, on behalf of the Department. Provider will comply with the following:
 - a. Provider, its employees, subcontractors, and agents will comply with all security and administrative requirements of the Department in performance of this contract. Provider will provide immediate notice to the Department's Information Security Manager (ISM), or their designee, in the event it becomes aware of any security breach and any unauthorized transmission of State Data as described below or of any allegation or suspected violation of security requirements of the Department.
 - b. Provider will produce, upon entering a contract, a current security audit (no more than 12 months old) performed by a third party that is certified to perform such audits that demonstrate the use of sound security measures and practices by the Provider hosting the data or application that is processing data, as defined by a nationally recognized security framework. Provider will produce the status of any corrective action plans underway to address deficiencies found in the security audit. Provider must provide an annual update on any open corrective action plans associated with the most recent audit's noted deficiencies. The Department has the right to require Provider to produce a new or updated audit every three years during the contract term, at Provider's expense.
 - c. Provider will provide a copy of its American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) "Standards for Attestation Engagements no. 18" (SSAE 18) Service Organization Controls (SOC) Report, SOC #, Type #, to the Department by ______. For each additional year of the contract, at the request of the Department, Provider will obtain a current American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) "Standards for Attestation Engagements no. 18" (SSAE 18).
 - d. Data Loss Prevention: Provider will perform periodic backups of all data (files, programs, databases, electronic records, etc.) hosted by Provider on behalf of the Department sufficient to ensure no data loss occurs, and that data will be restored from backup when necessary at the Provider's sole expense. In the event of loss of any State Data or records, where such loss is due to the negligence of Provider or any of its subcontractors or agents, the Department may be entitled to sanctions by law or financial consequences per the Contract.
 - e. Breach: A confirmed event that compromises the confidentiality, integrity or availability of information or data. In the event of a breach of any State Data where such breach is due to the negligence of Provider or any of its subcontractors or agents, the Department may be entitled to sanctions by law or financial consequences per the Contract. Provider may be subject to administrative sanctions for failure to comply with section 501.171, Florida Statutes, for any breach of data, due to a failure to maintain adequate security, and responsible for any costs to the Department for the breach caused by Provider.
 - f. Data Protection: No State Data or information will be stored in, processed in, or shipped to offshore locations or outside of the United States of America, regardless of method, except as required by law. Access to State Data will only be available to approved and authorized staff, including offshore Provider personnel, that have a legitimate business need. Requests for offshore access will be submitted in accordance with the Department established processes and will only be allowed with express written approval from the Deputy Secretary of Operations.

Third parties may be granted time-limited terminal service access to IT resources as necessary for fulfillment of related responsibilities with prior written approval by the ISM. Third parties will not be granted remote access via VPN, private line, or firewall holes, without an approved exemption. Requests for exceptions to this provision must be submitted to the ISM for approval. When remote access needs to be changed, the ISM will be promptly notified. Provider will abide by all Department and state of Florida data encryption standards regarding the transmission of confidential or confidential and exempt information. Documented encryption standards will be provided upon request. Offshore data access must be provided via a trusted method such as SSL, TLS, SSH, VPN, IPSec or a comparable protocol approved by the ISM. Confidential information must be encrypted using an approved encryption technology when transmitted outside of the network or over a medium not entirely owned or managed by the Department.

- g. Notice Requirement: Provider will notify the Department upon detection of anomalous or malicious traffic within the scope of contracted services. To the extent applicable, failure to notify the Department of events or incidents that result in breach will subject Provider to legal sanctions, financial consequences per the contract and/or any costs to the Department of such breach of security.
- h. Data Retention: Provider must retain data as follows:
 - i. <u>Copies</u>: At contract termination or expiration, submit copies of all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, correspondence, reports and other products prepared by or for Provider under the contract; submit copies of all State Data to the Department in a format to be designated by the Department in accordance with section 119.0701, Florida Statutes; shred or erase parts of any retained duplicates containing personal information of all copies to make any personal information unreadable.
 - ii. <u>Originals</u>: At contract termination or expiration--retain its original records, and maintain, in confidence to the extent required by law, Provider's original records in un-redacted form, until the records retention schedule expires and to reasonably protect such documents and data during any pending investigation or audit.
 - iii. <u>Both Copies and Originals</u>: Upon expiration of all retention schedules and audits or investigations and upon notice to the Department, destroy all State Data from Provider's systems including, but not limited to, electronic data and documents containing personal information or other data that is confidential and exempt under Florida public records law.
- 2. **Application Provisioning** This section applies to all contracts whereby a Provider is making available a software application to be used by the Department for collecting, processing, reporting, and storing data. Provider's software application used for the Department's automation and processing must support, and not inhibit, each of the following Department security requirements:
 - Users must never share account passwords or allow other users to use their account credentials. Users are responsible for all activities occurring from the use of their account credentials.
 - Department employees are responsible for safeguarding their passwords and other authentication methods by not sharing account passwords, email encryption passwords, personal identification numbers, smart cards, identification badges, or other devices used for identification and authentication purposes.
 - ii. Passwords will not be passed or stored in plain text. Passwords must be encrypted or secured by other means when stored or in transit.
 - b. Department employees will be accountable for their account activity.
 - Audit records will allow actions of users to be uniquely traced for accountability purposes.

- ii. User accounts must be authenticated at a minimum by a complex password.

 Department accounts will require passwords of at least 10 characters to include an upper and lowercase letter, a number, and a special character.
- iii. Department employees must log-off or lock their workstations prior to leaving the work area.
- iv. Workstations must be secured with a password-protected screensaver with the automatic activation feature set at no more than 10 minutes.
- c. Department employees must not disable, alter, or circumvent Department security measures.
- Computer monitors must be protected to prevent unauthorized viewing.
- e. Consultation involving confidential information must be held in areas with restricted access.
- f. Confidential information must be printed using appropriate administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to prevent unauthorized viewing.
- g. Access to data and information systems must be controlled to ensure only authorized individuals are allowed access to information and that access is granted upon a "need-to-know" basis only.
- h. User accounts will be deleted or disabled, as appropriate, within 30 days of employment termination, non-use of account for 60 consecutive days, or under direction of a manager or Personnel and Human Resource Management's notification of a security violation.
- i. Confidential information will not be disclosed without proper authority. It is the responsibility of each member of the workforce to maintain the confidentiality of information and data. Any employee who discloses confidential information will ensure sufficient authorization has been received, the information has been reviewed and prepared for disclosure as required, and no revocation of the requesting document has been received.
- j. All employees are responsible for protecting Department data, resources, and assets in their possession.
- k. All employees are responsible for immediately notifying their local information security coordinator of any violation of Department security policies, or suspected/potential breach of security.
- I. All employees will be knowledgeable of the classifications of data and information and the proper handling of data and information.
- 3. **Data Interchange** This section applies to contracts whereby the Department will be sending data transmissions to, or receiving data transmissions from, a Provider for the purpose of independent processing. Examples include: sending laboratory orders to a laboratory, receiving laboratory results, sending billing information to a clearing house, receiving billing results or notification of payment, sending vital statistics to the Social Security Administration, sending physician licensing information to Florida's Agency for Health Care Administration, receiving continuing education credit information for medical profession licensees, etc. Data interchange contracts must have a data sharing agreement in place. Provider will comply with the following:
 - a. Follow all Department and state of Florida data encryption standards regarding the transmission of confidential or confidential and exempt information between the Department and the Provider. Documented encryption standards will be provided upon request. All transmission of confidential or confidential and exempt data must utilize a protected protocol such as SSL, TLS, SSH, VPN, IPSec or a comparable protocol approved by the ISM.
 - b. Use of any connection to the Department's network will be for retrieving information delivered by the Department, or sending data to the Department, and not for any other access to resources on the Department's network.
 - c. Protect and maintain the confidentiality of all data, files, and records, deemed to be confidential or confidential and exempt, retrieved from the Department pursuant to this agreement. The user will immediately notify the Department's ISM of any loss or breach of information originating from the Department and retrieved by Provider.

4. **All IT Services** – This section applies to all contracts whereby a Provider is providing IT services to the Department.

Provider will protect and maintain the confidentiality of all data, files, and records, deemed to be confidential or confidential and exempt, acquired from the Department pursuant to this agreement. Except as required by law or legal process and after notice to the Department, Provider will not divulge to third parties any confidential information obtained by Provider or its agents, distributors, resellers, subcontractors, officers or employees in the course of performing contract work, including, but not limited to, security design or architecture, business operations information, or commercial proprietary information in the possession of the state or the Department.

ATTACHMENT H SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

Each Respondent must submit with its response a list of the subcontractors who will perform work under the Contract that is expected to result from this solicitation. The Respondent must determine that a listed subcontractor has been successfully engaged in performing the services required under this solicitation and is qualified to provide the services under the resulting Contract.

In the event that no subcontractor will be used, this form must be returned with the Respondent's response indicating "No Subcontractors will be used."

Subcontractor Name:		
Product or Services Provided		
Address:		
City and Zip		
Phone #		
Subcontractor Name:		
Product or Services Provided		
Address:		
City and Zip		
Phone #		
Subcontractor Name:		
Product or Services Provided		
Address:		
City and Zip		
Phone:		
(Athulal-Damas-aut-tiiOi-		
'Authorized Representative's Sig	nature	

*This individual must have the authority to bind the Respondent.

Combined HIPAA Privacy Business Associate Agreement and Confidentiality Agreement and HIPAA Security Rule Addendum and HI-TECH Act Compliance Agreement and the Florida Information Protection Act of 2014

This Agreement is entered into between the State of Florida, Florida Department of Health ("Covered
Entity"), and ("Business Associate"). The parties have entered into this Agreement for the
purpose of satisfying the Business Associate contract requirements in the regulations at 45 CFR 164.502(e)
and 164.504(e), issued under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA")
the Security Rule, codified at 45 Code of Federal Regulations ("C.F.R.") Part 164, Subparts A and C; Health
Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act, Title XIII of Division A and Title IV
of Division B of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA), Pub. L. No. 111-5 (Feb
17, 2009) and related regulations. This Agreement corresponds to the following contract #, purchase order
or memorandum of agreement

1.0 Definitions

Terms used but not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those terms in 45 CFR 160.103 and 164.501. Notwithstanding the above, "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of Florida Department of Health. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR 164.501 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(g); "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services or his designee; and "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at 45 CFR part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E.

Part I: Privacy Provisions

2.0 Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

- (a) Business Associate agrees to not use or further disclose Protected Health Information ("PHI") other than as permitted or required by Sections 3.0 and 5.0 of this Agreement, or as required by Law.
- (b) Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement.
- (c) Business Associate agrees to take reasonable measures to protect and secure data in electronic form containing personal information as defined by §501.171, Florida Statutes.
- (d) Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business Associate in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.
- (e) Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the Protected Health Information not provided for by this Agreement of which it becomes aware.
- (f) Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to Business Associate with respect to such information.
- (g) Business Associate agrees to provide access, at the request of Covered Entity or an Individual, and in a prompt and reasonable manner consistent with the HIPAA regulations, to Protected Health Information in a designated record set, to the Covered Entity or directly to an Individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR 164.524.
- (h) Business Associate agrees to make any Amendment(s) to Protected Health Information in a designated record set that the Covered Entity or an Individual directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR 164.526, in a prompt and reasonable manner consistent with the HIPAA regulations.
- (i) Business Associate agrees to make its internal practices, books, and records, including policies and procedures and Protected Health Information, relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity

- available to the Covered Entity, or at the request of the Covered Entity, to the Secretary in a time and manner designated by the Covered Entity or the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule.
- (j) Business Associate agrees to document disclosures of Protected Health Information and information related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528.
- (k) Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528, in a prompt and reasonable manner consistent with the HIPAA regulations.
- (I) Business Associate agrees to satisfy all applicable provisions of HIPAA standards for electronic transactions and code sets, also known as the Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) Standards, at 45 CFR Part 162 no later than October 16, 2003. Business Associate further agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, that conducts standard transactions on its behalf, will comply with the EDI Standards.
- (m) Business Associate agrees to determine the Minimum Necessary type and amount of PHI required to perform its services and will comply with 45 CFR 164.502(b) and 514(d).
- (n) Business Associate agrees to comply with all aspects of §501.171, Florida Statutes.
- 3.0 Permitted or Required Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate General Use and Disclosure.
- (a) Except as expressly permitted in writing by Department of Health, Business Associate may use Protected Health Information only to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate, but shall not disclose information to any third party without the expressed written consent of the Covered Entity.
- (b) Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use Protected Health Information to provide data aggregation services to Covered Entity as permitted by 45 CFR 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).
- (c) Business Associate may use Protected Health Information to report violations of law to appropriate Federal and State authorities, consistent with 45 CFR 164.502(j) (1).
- 4.0 <u>Obligations of Covered Entity to Inform Business Associate of Covered Entity's Privacy Practices, and</u> any Authorization or Restrictions.
- (a) Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with the notice of privacy practices that Covered Entity produces in accordance with 45 CFR 164.520, as well as any changes to such notice.
- (b) Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with any changes in, or revocation of, Authorization by Individual or his or her personal representative to use or disclose Protected Health Information, if such changes affect Business Associate's uses or disclosures of Protected Health Information.
- (c) Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of Protected Health Information that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, if such changes affect Business Associate's uses or disclosures of Protected Health Information.
- 5.0 Confidentiality under State Law.
- (a) In addition to the HIPAA privacy requirements and the data security requirements of §501.171, Florida Statutes, Business Associate agrees to observe the confidentiality requirements of Chapter 381, Florida Statutes and any other Florida Statute relating to the confidentiality of information provided under this agreement.
- (b) Receipt of a Subpoena. If Business Associate is served with subpoena requiring the production of Department of Health records or information, Business Associate shall immediately contact the

Department of Health, Office of the General Counsel, (850) 245-4005. A subpoena is an official summons issued by a court or an administrative tribunal, which requires the recipient to do one or more of the following:

- 1. Appear at a deposition to give sworn testimony, and may also require that certain records be brought to be examined as evidence.
- 2. Appear at a hearing or trial to give evidence as a witness, and may also require that certain records be brought to be examined as evidence.
- 3. Furnish certain records for examination, by mail or by hand-delivery.
- (c) Employees and Agents. Business Associate acknowledges that the confidentiality requirements herein apply to all its employees, agents and representatives. Business Associate assumes responsibility and liability for any damages or claims, including state and federal administrative proceedings and sanctions, against Department of Health, including costs and attorneys' fees, resulting from the breach of the confidentiality requirements of this Agreement.

6.0 Permissible Requests by Covered Entity.

Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to use or disclose Protected Health Information in any manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity.

7.0 Term and Termination.

(a) Term.

The Term of this Agreement shall be coterminous with the underlying contract, purchase order, or memorandum of understanding giving rise to this agreement.

(b) Termination for Cause.

Without limiting any other termination rights the parties may have, upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate of a provision under this Agreement, Covered Entity shall provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end the violation. If the Agreement of Business Associate does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time specified by Covered Entity, the Covered Entity shall have the right to immediately terminate the Agreement. If neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

(c) Effect of Termination.

- 1. Within sixty (60) days after termination of the Agreement for any reason, or within such other time period as mutually agreed upon in writing by the parties, Business Associate shall return to Covered Entity or destroy all Protected Health Information maintained by Business Associate in any form and shall retain no copies thereof. Business Associate also shall recover, and shall return or destroy with such time period, any Protected Health Information in the possession of its subcontractors or agents.
- 2. Within fifteen (15) days after termination of the Agreement for any reason, Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity in writing as to whether Business Associate elects to return or destroy such Protected Health Information. If Business Associate elects to destroy such Protected Health Information, it shall certify to Covered Entity in writing when and that such Protected Health Information has been destroyed. If any subcontractors or agents of the Business Associate elect to destroy the Protected Health Information, Business Associate will require such subcontractors or agents to certify to Business Associate and to Covered Entity in writing when such Protected Health Information has been destroyed. If it is not feasible for Business Associate to return or destroy any of said Protected Health Information, Business Associate shall notify Covered Entity in writing that Business Associate has determined that it is not feasible to return or destroy the Protected Health Information and the specific reasons for such determination. Business
- 3. Associate further agrees to extend any and all protections, limitations, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement to Business Associate's use or disclosure of any Protected Health Information

- retained after the termination of this Agreement, and to limit any further uses or disclosures to the purposes that make the return or destruction of the Protected Health Information not feasible.
- 4. If it is not feasible for Business Associate to obtain, from a subcontractor or agent, any Protected Health Information in the possession of the subcontractor or agent, Business Associate shall provide a written explanation to Covered Entity and require the subcontractors and agents to agree to extend any and all protections, limitations, and restrictions set forth in this Agreement to the subcontractors' or agents' uses or disclosures of any Protected Health Information retained after the termination of this Agreement, and to limit any further uses or disclosures to the purposes that make the return or destruction of the Protected Health Information not feasible.

Part II: Breaches and Security Incidents

8.0 Privacy or Security Breach.

Business Associate will report to Covered Entity's Privacy Officer or other department contact within 2 business days after the discovery, any unauthorized access, use, disclosure of Covered Entity's protected health Information not permitted by the Business Associates Agreement along with any breach of Covered Entity's unsecured protected health information. Business Associate will treat the breach as being discovered in accordance with 45 CFR §164.410. If a delay is requested by a law enforcement official in accordance with 45 CFR §164.412, Business Associate may delay notifying the Covered Entity for the applicable time period. Business Associates report will at a minimum:

- (a) Identify the nature of the breach or other non-permitted use or disclosure, which will include a brief description of what happened, including the date of any breach and the date of discovery of the breach;
- (b) Identify Covered Entity's Protected Health Information that was subject to the non-permitted use or disclosure or breach (such as whether name, social security number, date of birth, home address, account number or other information was disclosed/accessed) on an individual basis;
- (c) Identify who made the non-permitted use or disclosure and who received it;
- (d) Identify what corrective or investigational action Business Associate took or will take to prevent further non-permitted uses or disclosures, to mitigate harmful effects and to protect against any further breaches;
- (e) Identify what steps the individuals who were subject to a breach should take to protect themselves;
- (f) Provide such other information, including a written report, as Covered Entity may reasonably request.

8.1 Security of Electronic Protected Health Information.

WHEREAS, Business Associate and Department of Health agree to also address herein the applicable requirements of the Security Rule, codified at 45 Code of Federal Regulations ("C.F.R.") Part 164, Subparts A and C, issued pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions of Title II, Subtitle F of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA-AS"), and the Florida Information Protection Act (FIPA) §501.171, Florida Statutes, so that the Covered Entity may meet compliance obligations under HIPAA-AS and FIPA the parties agree:

(a) Business Associate will develop, implement, maintain, and use administrative, technical, and physical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information (as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103) and Personal Information (as defined in §501.171, Florida Statutes) that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the Plans consistent with the Security Rule.

(b) Reporting Security Incidents. Business Associate will report to Covered Entity any successful (A) unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of Covered Entity's Electronic Protected Health Information or unauthorized access of data in an electronic form containing Personal Information as defined in §501.171, Florida Statute, or (B) interference with Business Associate's system operations in Business Associate's information systems, of which Business Associate becomes aware.

8.2 Corrective Action:

- (a) Business Associate agrees to take prompt corrective action and follow all provisions required in state and federal law to notify all individuals reasonably believed to be potentially affected by the breach.
- (b) Cure: Business Associate agrees to take prompt corrective action to cure any security deficiencies.

Part III

9.0 Miscellaneous

- (a) <u>Regulatory References</u>. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule means the section as in effect or as amended, and for which compliance is required.
- (b) Amendment. Upon the enactment of any law or regulation affecting the use or disclosure of Protected Health Information, Personal Information, Standard Transactions, the security of Health Information, or other aspects of HIPAA-AS or FIPA applicable or the publication of any decision of a court of the United States or any state relating to any such law or the publication of any interpretive policy or opinion of any governmental agency charged with the enforcement of any such law or regulation, either party may, by written notice to the other party, amend this Agreement in such manner as such party determines necessary to comply with such law or regulation. If the other party disagrees with such Amendment, it shall so notify the first party in writing within thirty (30) days of the notice. If the parties are unable to agree on an Amendment within thirty (30) days thereafter, then either of the parties may terminate the Agreement on thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.
- (c) <u>Survival</u>. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section 7.0 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.
- (d) <u>Interpretation</u>. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that permits Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy Rule and the confidentiality requirements of the State of Florida.
- (e) <u>No third-party beneficiary</u>. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than the parties and the respective successors or assignees of the parties, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.
- (f) <u>Governing Law</u>. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Florida to the extent not preempted by the Privacy Rules or other applicable federal law.
- (g) The laws of the State of Florida shall apply to the interpretation of this Agreement or in case of any disagreement between the parties; the venue of any proceedings shall be the appropriate federal or state court in Leon County, Florida.
- (h) Indemnification and performance guarantees. Business Associate shall indemnify, defend, and save harmless the State of Florida and Individuals covered for any financial loss as a result of claims brought by third parties and which are caused by the failure of Business Associate, its officers, directors or agents to comply with the terms of this Agreement. Additionally, Business Associate shall indemnify the State of Florida for any time and expenses it may incur from breach notifications that are necessary under either §501.171, Florida Statute or the HIPAA Breach Notification Rule, 45 CFR §§ 164.400-414, which are caused by the failure of Business Associate, its officers, directors or agents to comply with the terms of this Agreement.

(i) <u>Assignment</u>: Business Associate shall not assign either its obligations or benefits under this Agreement without the expressed written consent of the Covered Entity, which shall be at the sole discretion of the Covered Entity. Given the nature of this Agreement, neither subcontracting nor assignment by the Business Associate is anticipated and the use of those terms herein does not indicate that permission to assign or subcontract has been granted.

For: DEPARIMENT OF HEALTH
Ву:
Title:
Date:
For: (Name of Business Associate)
Ву:
Title:
Date:

APPENDIX A REGIONAL BREAKDOWN

North West Region	Physical Address	
Escambia County	1295 W Fairfield Dr. Pensacola, 32501	
Franklin County	139 12 th St. Apalachicola,32320	
Jackson County	4979 Healthy Way. Marianna, 32447	
Okaloosa County	221 Hospital Drive. NE Ft Walton Beach, 32548-5066	
Santa Rosa County	5527 Stewart St. Milton, 32570	
Holmes County	603 Scenic Circle. Bonifay, 32425	
North Central		
Region	070 0	
Gadsden County	278 LaSalle Leffall Dr. Quincy, 32351	
Leon County	872 W. Orange Ave. Tallahassee, 32310	
Wakulla County	48 Oak St. Crawfordville, 32327	
Hamilton County	209 SE Central Ave. Jasper, 32052	
Suwanee County	915 Nobles Ferry Rd. Live Oak, 32064	
Lafayette County	140 SW. Virginia Cr. Mayo, 32066	
Dixie County	149 NE 241 st St. Cross City,32628	
Columbia County	217 NE Franklin St. Lake City, 32055	
Union County	495 E. Main St. Lake Butler, 32054	
Bradford County	1801 N Temple Ave. Starke, 32091	
Alachua County	224 SE 24 th St. Gainesville, 32641	
Levy County	66 West Main St. Bronson,32621	
Marion County	1801 SE. 32 nd Ave. Ocala, 34471	
Citrus County	3700 W Sovereign Path. Lecanto, 34461	
No allocat Destan		
Northeast Region	400 W.L	
Baker County	480 W Lowder St. Macclenny, 32063	
Nassau County	1620 Nectarine St. Fernandina Beach, 32034	
Putnam County	2801 Kennedy St. Palatka, 32177	
East Central Region		
Flagler County	301 Dr Carter Blvd. Bunnell, 32110	
Brevard County	2555 Judge Fran Jamison Way. Viera,32940	
Seminole County	400 W. Airport Blvd. Sanford, 32773	
Osceola County	1875 Fortune Rd. Kissimmee, 34744	
Lake County	16140 US Hwy 441. Eustis, 32726	
Sumter County	415 E. Noble Ave. Bushnell, 33513	
West Central		
Region		
Hernando County	300 S. Main Street. Brooksville, 34601	
Pasco E County	10841 Little Rd. New Port Richey, 34654	
Pasco W County	13941 15 th St. Dade City, 33525	
Sarasota County	2200 Ringling Blvd. Sarasota, 34237	

APPENDIX A REGIONAL BREAKDOWN

Desoto County	1031 E. Oak St. Arcadia, 34266			
Highlands County	7205 S. George Blvd. Sebring, 33875			
Southeast				
Indian River County	1900 27 th St. Vero Beach, 32960			
Okeechobee County	1728 NW 9 th Ave. Okeechobee, 34972			
St. Lucie County	714 Ave C. Fort Pierce, 34950			
Martin County	3441 SE. Willoughby Blvd. Stuart, 34994-5060			
Palm Beach County	1150 45 th St. West Palm Beach, 33407			
Southwest				
Lee County	83 Pondella Rd. North Fort Myers, 33903			
Collier County	419 North First St. Immokalee, 34142			
Hendry-Glades				
County	1100 S. Olympia. Clewiston, 33440			
South				
Broward County	4745 Oak Fair Blvd. Tampa, 33610			
Monroe County	1100 Simonton St. Key West, 33040			